
REVISED 
City of Mission 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
Wednesday, September 16, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 
Mission City Hall, 6090 Woodson 

 
If you require any accommodations (i.e. qualified interpreter, large print, reader, hearing assistance) in                           
order to attend this meeting, please notify the Administrative Office at 9136768350 no later than 24                               
hours prior to the beginning of the meeting. 
 
CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
1.  SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 

● Presentation of Trophies by Mission Marlins Swim Team 
● Introduction of John Blessing, Deffenbaugh 

 
2.  ISSUANCE OF NOTES AND BONDS 
 
3.  CONSENT AGENDA 
 
NOTE:  Information on consent agenda items has been provided to the Governing Body.  These                           
items are determined to be routine enough to be acted on in a single motion; however, this                                 
does not preclude discussion.  If a councilmember requests, an item may be removed                         
from the consent agenda for further consideration and separate motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  GENERAL 
 
3a.    Minutes of the August 19, 2015 City Council Meeting  
  
CONSENT AGENDA  Finance & Administration Committee 
  Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Packet 9215 

Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Minutes 9215 
 
3b. Selection of Voting Delegates for NLC Annual Business Meeting 
3c. Massage Establishment License, Body in Balance Therapeutics  REMOVED 
3d. Ordinance Adopting STO and UPOC 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  Community Development Committee 

Community Development Committee Meeting Packet 9215  
Community Development Committee Meeting Minutes 9215  

 
3e. Safe Routes to School Award of Contract 
 
COMMUNITY COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

Approved Minutes from Board and Commission meetings are available on the  
City of Mission website under the “Agendas & Minutes” tab. 

 

http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=minute&docid=6270
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=packet&docid=6316
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=minute&docid=6316
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=packet&docid=6314
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=minute&docid=6314
http://missionks.org/agenda.aspx


4.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
5.  ACTION ITEMS 
 

Planning Commission 
 

Miscellaneous 
 
6.  COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Finance & Administration, Arcie Rothrock 
  Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Packet 9215 

Finance & Administration Committee Meeting Minutes 9215 
 
6a. Purchase of Police Vehicles 
6b. Ordinance Amending Implementation Date of Mission Gateway CID District #1 
6c. Ordinance Amending Implementation Date of Mission Gateway CID District #2 
 
 Community Development, Pat Quinn 

Community Development Committee Meeting Packet 9215 
Community Development Committee Meeting Minutes 9215 

 
6d. Bids for Improvements to Mohawk Trail 
 
7.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
8.  NEW BUSINESS 
 
9.  MAYOR'S REPORT 
 

Appointments 
 
10.  CITY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=packet&docid=6316
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=minute&docid=6316
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=packet&docid=6314
http://missionks.org/docview.aspx?doctype=minute&docid=6314


 

City of Mission  Item Number:  6a. 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY  Date:  August 28, 2015 

Administration  From:  Ben Hadley 
Action items require a vote to recommend the item to full City Council for further action. 
 

RE: Purchase of Police Vehicles 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve the purchase of police vehicles in accordance with 
approved equipment replacement schedules in an amount not to exceed $106,853.16. 
 
DETAILS:  For the last 23 years the Police Department has been working from a 
modified vehicle replacement schedule in an effort to get the current fleet on an 
appropriate schedule moving forward. 
 
As the Department has evaluated and changed staffing assignments and responded to 
budgetary constraints, several anticipated replacements have been deferred.  We have 
worked with the Finance Director and City Administrator in 2014, 2015 and for the 2016 
budget to try and catchup on as much of the vehicle replacement backlog as budgets 
will allow.. 
 
The replacement request 2015 was for three (3) administration vehicles and the patrol 
supervisor’s vehicle.  Based on the current budget, we can proceed with the outright 
purchase of the three administration vehicles at this time.  The vehicles would be 
acquired through the MARC cooperative purchasing arrangement, and prices are valid 
through October 2015. The vehicles to be replaced are: 
 

2005 Ford Taurus  replaced with 2016 Ford Explorer 
2005 Ford Taurus  replaced with 2016 Ford Explorer 
2006 Ford Taurus  replaced with 2016 Ford Explorer 
 

Staff is recommending to proceed with purchase of these three vehicles at an estimated 
cost per vehicle (including accessory equipment and installation) of $35,617.72.  Total 
estimated cost for replacement of the three vehicles is $106,853.16.  The replacement 
of the patrol supervisor’s vehicle will be revisited later in the year pending a review of 
the budget.  
 
The Department anticipates a trade/resale value of $10,000, bringing the net cost of the 
vehicle purchase to $96,853.16. 

 

Related Statute/City Ordinance:   

Line Item Code/Description:  Police Vehicles 013040301 
Equipment General 013030202 

Available Budget:  $103,000 

 



 

City of Mission  Item Number:  6b & 6c Revised 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY  Date:  August 27, 2015 

Administration  From:  Laura Smith 
Action items require a vote to recommend the item to full City Council for further action. 
 

RE: Revision of Gateway CID Implementation Dates 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approve the ordinances amending the implementation date for 
the Gateway Community Improvement District’s (CID’s) to an effective date of October 
1, 2016.   
 
DETAILS:  On February 20, 2013 the City Council approved Ordinance Nos. 1376 and 
1377 which established the CIDs for the Gateway Redevelopment Project.  The 
ordinance specified the districts were to take effect January 1, 2015.  In September 
2014, the Council approved Ordinance Nos. 1408 and 1409 amending the CID 
implementation dates to January 1, 2016. 
 
The Developer has requested that the implementation dates be adjusted to October 1, 
2016 (see attached letter).  This is not an approval of new incentives, just an extension 
of the date when CID taxes are collected by the taxing authorities.  With no retailers on 
site generating sales tax on January 1, 2016 the City would not want to activate the 
district.  Delaying activation preserves the entire 22 year duration for collection of 
revenues within the district, and provides the Council with the greatest degree of 
flexibility in evaluating how CID revenues might be used.  Once activated, the CID 
“clock” could not be reset. 
 
The State requires notice of any change to sales tax implementation dates by the first of 
the quarter immediately preceding the quarter the sales tax is to take effect.  Meaning, 
we need to advise the State by October 1, 2015 in order to revise a January 1, 2016 
date. 
 
 

 

Related Statute/City Ordinance:   

Line Item Code/Description:   

Available Budget:   

 



 
900 W. 48th Place, Suite 900, Kansas City, MO, 64112  •  816.753.1000 

 
 

polsinelli.com 

Atlanta     Chicago     Dallas     Denver     Kansas City     Los Angeles     New York     Phoenix     St. Louis     Washington, DC     Wilmington 
Polsinelli PC, Polsinelli LLP in California 

51061626.1 

August 27, 2015 

 

Korb Maxwell 
Kmaxwell@Polsinelli.com 
(816) 360-4327 
 
 

ELECTRONIC MAIL 
 
Laura Smith 
City Administrator 
6090 Woodson 
Mission, KS 66202 
 

 

 

Re: MISSION GATEWAY- REQUEST FOR DELAY OF COMMUNITY 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT SALES TAX COMMENCEMENT 
DATE 
 

Dear Laura: 

Our client, The Gateway Developers, LLC (“Gateway”), is the owner of record of all 
land property within two (2) certain Community Improvement Districts (“CIDs”) within the City 
of Mission, Kansas created under Ordinances Nos. 1376 and 1377, as amended by Ordinances 
Nos. 1408 and 1409 (the “Ordinances”).  The Ordinances established that the CID Sales Tax for 
both CIDs was to commence on January 1, 2015.  However, as you are aware, the property 
within the CIDs is still under construction and no businesses currently operate therein.  
Accordingly, please consider this letter a request on behalf of Gateway to extend the CID Sales 
Tax commencement date from January 1, 2015 to October 1, 2016.  We would appreciate the 
City communicating this request to the Kansas Department of Revenue.   

Please feel free to contact me with any questions.  

Sincerely, 

/s/ 
 
Korb Maxwell 

 
 
 



(Published in The Legal Record on _______________, 2015) 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBERS 1376 AND 1408, 

AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF THE MISSION GATEWAY 

COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #1 IN THE CITY OF MISSION, 

KANSAS; AUTHORIZING THE MAKING OF CERTAIN PROJECT 

IMPROVEMENTS RELATING THERETO; APPROVING THE ESTIMATED 

COSTS OF SUCH PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS; LEVYING A 0.5% CID 

SALES TAX, PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AND PROVIDING 

FOR THE METHOD OF FINANCING THE SAME, INCLUDING THE 

ISSUANCE OF SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS AND FULL FAITH AND 

CREDIT BONDS. 

WHEREAS, on February 20, 2013, the City of Mission, Kansas adopted Ordinance No. 

1376, creating the Mission Gateway Community Improvement District #1 ("District"); and 

WHEREAS, said Ordinance No. 1376 in Section 4 thereof established a date of January 1, 

2015 for the commencement of the CID Sales Tax within the District, or such other date as shall be 

approved by ordinance of the City; and 

WHEREAS,  on September 17, 2014, the City of Mission, Kansas adopted Ordinance No. 

1408, amending Ordinance No. 1376 to establish a date of January 1, 2016 for the commencement of 

the CID Sales Tax within the District, or such other date as shall be approved by ordinance of the 

City; and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend said Section 4 of Ordinance No. 1376 and Ordinance 
No. 1408 to provide that the commencement of the CID Sales Tax within the District shall be 
October 1, 2016. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 

CITY OF MISSION, KANSAS: 

SECTION 1. Amendment of Section 4 of Ordinance No. 1376 and Section 1 of 

Ordinance 1408. That Section 4 of Ordinance No. 1376 and Section 1 of Ordinance No. 1408 are 

hereby amended to read as follows: 

SECTION 4. Imposition of Transportation District Sales Tax. In order to provide for the 

payment of the Projects, the Governing Body of the City hereby imposes the CID Sales Tax within 

the District in an amount of 0.5% on the selling of tangible personal property at retail or rendering 

or furnishing services taxable pursuant to the provisions of the Kansas retailers' sales tax act within 

the District with such CID Sales Tax to commence on October 1, 2016 or such other date as shall be 

approved by ordinance of the City. 



SECTION 2. Ratification; No Repeal. Except as amended herein, Ordinance No. 1376 and 

Ordinance No. 1408 are hereby ratified, shall remain in full force and effect, and shall not be 
repealed hereby. 

PASSED by the Governing Body this _____ day of _______________, 2015. 

SIGNED by the Mayor this _____ day of __________________, 2015. 

 

     CITY OF MISSION, KANSAS 

 

     By:  ________________________________ 

                                      Steve Schowengerdt, Mayor  

 

      

 

[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 

Martha Sumrall, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
David K. Martin, City Attorney 



(Published in The Legal Record on _______________, 2015) 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBERS 1377 AND 1409, 

AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF THE MISSION GATEWAY 

COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT #2 IN THE CITY OF MISSION, 

KANSAS; AUTHORIZING THE MAKING OF CERTAIN PROJECT 

IMPROVEMENTS RELATING THERETO; APPROVING THE ESTIMATED 

COSTS OF SUCH PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS; LEVYING A 0.5% CID 

SALES TAX, PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AND PROVIDING 

FOR THE METHOD OF FINANCING THE SAME, INCLUDING THE 

ISSUANCE OF SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS AND FULL FAITH AND 

CREDIT BONDS. 

WHEREAS, on February 20, 2013, the City of Mission, Kansas adopted Ordinance No. 

1377, creating the Mission Gateway Community Improvement District #2 ("District"); and 

WHEREAS, said Ordinance No. 1377 in Section 4 thereof established a date of January 1, 

2015 for the commencement of the CID Sales Tax within the District, or such other date as shall be 

approved by ordinance of the City; and 

WHEREAS,  on September 17, 2014, the City of Mission, Kansas adopted Ordinance No. 

1409, amending Ordinance No. 1377 to establish a date of January 1, 2016 for the commencement of 

the CID Sales Tax within the District, or such other date as shall be approved by ordinance of the 

City; and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend said Section 4 of Ordinance No. 1377 and Ordinance 
No. 1409 to provide that the commencement of the CID Sales Tax within the District shall be 
October 1, 2016. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE 

CITY OF MISSION, KANSAS: 

SECTION 1. Amendment of Section 4 of Ordinance No. 1377 and Section 1 of 

Ordinance 1409. That Section 4 of Ordinance No. 1377 and Section 1 of Ordinance No. 1409 are 

hereby amended to read as follows: 

SECTION 4. Imposition of Transportation District Sales Tax. In order to provide for the 

payment of the Projects, the Governing Body of the City hereby imposes the CID Sales Tax within 

the District in an amount of 0.5% on the selling of tangible personal property at retail or rendering 

or furnishing services taxable pursuant to the provisions of the Kansas retailers' sales tax act within 

the District with such CID Sales Tax to commence on October 1, 2016 or such other date as shall be 

approved by ordinance of the City. 



SECTION 2. Ratification; No Repeal. Except as amended herein, Ordinance No. 1377 and 

Ordinance No. 1409 are hereby ratified, shall remain in full force and effect, and shall not be 
repealed hereby. 

PASSED by the Governing Body this _____ day of _______________, 2015. 

SIGNED by the Mayor this _____ day of __________________, 2015. 

 

     CITY OF MISSION, KANSAS 

 

             

      By:____________________________ 

                Steve Schowengerdt, Mayor    

  

 

[SEAL] 

ATTEST: 

_________________________________ 

Martha Sumrall, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
David K. Martin, City Attorney 



 

City of Mission  Item Number:  6d.  Revised 

ACTION ITEM SUMMARY  Date:  August 27, 2015 

Parks & Recreation Department  From:  Christy Humerickhouse 
Action items require a vote to recommend the item to full City Council for further action. 

 
RE: Replacement of walking trail in Mohawk Park. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract with Tenoch Construction,                       
Inc. for the Mohawk Park trail reconstruction project in an amount not to exceed $62,635.25.  
 
DETAILS: Mohawk Park currently has a .4 mile asphalt walking trail. The City has not made                               
any modifications or improvements to the trail since the site was acquired in 200304. The                             
replacement trail will go back in the same location as the existing trail. It will be 6 feet wide                                     
with 4 inches of asphalt on top of a 4 inch AB3 aggregate base. The 2014 CIP identified                                   
replacement of the trail in a budgeted amount of $75,000. Because of other projects, the trail                               
replacement was deferred to 2015 and the funds carried over. Earlier this summer, staff                           
solicited bids for the complete removal and replacement of the walking trail. Four bids were                             
received by the deadline: 
 

Tenoch Construction, Inc.  $62,635.25 

Harbour Construction  $64,035.25 

O’Donnell Way Construction  $70,107.00 

Little Joe’s Asphalt  $86,606.00 

 
Following the review of the bid submittal and reference checks, staff recommends the City                           
Council approve the bid from Tenoch Construction, Inc. Work is expected to begin on or about                               
September 20, 2015 and is estimated to be completed no later than October 30, 2015. 
 
During the September 2, 2015 Committee meeting, the Council inquired about the possibility of                           
removing an additional 300 square feet of sidewalk near the playground and removing eight                           
light pole bases from the parking lot. A revised bid was solicited from Tenoch, and the cost to                                   
add these items was $2,400. Staff has revised the bid estimate accordingly and recommends                           
this work be added to the contract. 
 
 
 
 

 

Related Statute/City 
Ordinance: 

N/A 

Line Item Code/Description:  459080509  Capital Projects 

Available Budget:  $75,000.00 

 
1 


































	CC Agenda 9-16-15 - Google Docs
	AI_Police Vehicle Purchase - Google Docs
	AI_Revision of Gateway CID Implementation Date - Google Docs
	Letter re Extension of CID Collection Date (2)
	Ordinance - Gateway CID 1 (2)
	Ordinance - Gateway CID 2 (2)
	AI - Mohawk Park Trial Reconstruction #2 - Google Docs
	Tenock - Add Bid
	Mowhawk Park Trail Reconstruction Bids
	Mohawk Park Trail Reconstruction Contract



